

of Minneapolis, whose terms would have been filled at a 1987 municipal election, are extended to the first business day in January 1990. At the general municipal election in 1989, and every four years thereafter the voters of the city shall elect nine commissioners, three at large and six from the park and recreation districts as provided for in the Minneapolis city charter.

Sec. 4. **LIBRARY BOARD.**

The terms of the elected members of the library board of the city of Minneapolis, whose terms would have been filled at a 1987 municipal election, are extended to the first business day in January 1990. Those whose terms were filled during the 1985 municipal election are extended to the first business day in 1994. At the general municipal election in 1993 and every four years thereafter, the electors of the city of Minneapolis shall elect six members of the board, each for a term of four years.

Sec. 5. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective after compliance with Minnesota Statutes, section 645.021, subdivision 3, by the board of estimate and taxation of the city of Minneapolis, the park and recreation board of the city of Minneapolis, and the library board of the city of Minneapolis.

Approved March 24, 1986

CHAPTER 434—S.F.No. 164

An act relating to claims against the state; providing for payment of various claims; ratifying labor agreements between the state of Minnesota and certain employee organizations; appropriating money.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. **VETERANS BONUS CLAIMS; APPROPRIATIONS; GENERAL FUND.**

Subdivision 1. **GENERALLY.** The sums set forth in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the persons named in subdivisions 2 to 4 in full and final payment of claims against the state for adjusted compensation arising from World War II, the Korean Conflict, and Vietnam service.

Subd. 2. **WORLD WAR II.** Donald E. George, 2273 Macon Street, Aurora, Colorado 80010.....\$270.

Rodney P. Kephart, P.O. Box 252, Stanley, North Dakota 58784.....\$400.

Everett Oolman, Rte. 1, Box 98AH, Fulda, Minnesota 56131.....\$400.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Lyle F. Redmond, 4434-41st Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406.....\$275.

Loren C. Smith, Sr., 5521-79th Street, Sacramento, California 95820.....\$400.

Subd. 3. KOREAN CONFLICT. Ronald W. Adams, 1008 9th Street, International Falls, Minnesota 56649.....\$67.50.

Edward Beckett (beneficiary), 1294 West Front Street, Lincroft, New Jersey 07738.....\$80.

Jay L. Jacobson, 3210 Leyland Trail, Woodbury, Minnesota 55125.....\$97.50.

Robert A. Krech, 1200 East 18th Street, Hastings, Minnesota 55033.....\$105.

Viola Leipzig (beneficiary), 5257 Lost Creek Road, Shingle Springs, California 95682.....\$80.

DuWayne P. Lewis, 805 Filmore, Apartment 409, Alexandria, Minnesota 56308.....\$52.50.

Arnold W. McCluskey, 418 Sargent Road, Box 783, Willernie, Minnesota 55090.....\$45.

Lillian McGee (beneficiary), 1940 Peosta, Helena, Montana 59601.....\$80.

Richard F. Rauchnot, P. O. Box 52, Lakeland, Minnesota 55003.....\$52.50.

Lucille Ripplinger (beneficiary), 912-9th Street, Cloquet, Minnesota 55720.....\$80.

James L. Westphal, 3852 Minuteman Lane, Lexington, Minnesota 55112.....\$157.50.

Eleanor Wong (beneficiary), 556 Broadway, Helena, Montana 59601.....\$80.

Subd. 4. VIETNAM SERVICE. Roy J. Alder, Box 222, Audubon, Minnesota 56511.....\$300.

Robert H. Anderson, 1207 Garney Avenue, Mankato, Minnesota 56001.....\$600.

William R. Barnes, 1049-1/2 South Norton Avenue, Los Angeles, California 90019.....\$600.

Richard A. Bjur, 103 Hillside Street West, Big Lake, Minnesota 55309.....\$100.

Thomas L. Blake, 622 South 10th Street, #4, Moorhead, Minnesota 56560.....\$300.

Susan L. Brouse, 2180 Londin Lane, Apartment 213, St. Paul, Minnesota 55119.....\$285.

Reginal L. Bruggeman, 101 South Tindolph, Thief River Falls, Minnesota 56701.....\$100.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Clifton Curtis, Jr., 925-30th Avenue South, #102, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406.....\$300.

Anthony T. Fronk, 832 Case Avenue, Apartment-Up, St. Paul, Minnesota 55106.....\$105.

Margaret S. Gaworecki, 1512 North Cedar, Owatonna, Minnesota 55060.....\$285.

Harley J. Goodman, 2832 Chicago Avenue South, #102, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55407....\$300.

Donald N. Grattan, Route 3, Box 335, Brainerd, Minnesota 56401.....\$600.

Julie Ann Harris, P.O. Box 354, Pinewood, Minnesota 56664.....\$100.

Albertha Hill (beneficiary), 103 DeAnn Street, Crystal Springs, Mississippi 39083.....\$1,000.

Joseph F. Holstein, Schley Route, Cass Lake, Minnesota 56633.....\$100.

Walter P. Hoppe, P. O. Box 313, Victor, Montana 59875.....\$135.

Donald H. Hutchins, 1205 Main Prairie Road, St. Cloud, Minnesota 56301.....\$300.

Obie Irvin, 3518 Nicollet Avenue South, #307, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55408.....\$510.

Jon F. Jennings, 1260 Oakview Drive, #4, St. Charles, Minnesota 55972.....\$195.

Laurence R. Jensen, 10527 202nd Street West, Lakeville, Minnesota 55044.....\$600.

Richard C. Kachman, 3244 30th Avenue South, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406.....\$300.

Randall A. LaKosky, P.O. Box 1188, Virginia, Minnesota 55792.....\$255.

Ronald F. Lawrence, 1200 East 18th Street, Hastings, Minnesota 55033.....\$180.

Harold D. Lee, Route 2, Box 55, Newfolden, Minnesota 56738.....\$600.

John F. Manikowski, 4233 Jackson Street Northeast, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55421.....\$100.

James A. Martin, 2118 Senate Drive, Bismarck, North Dakota 58501.....\$100.

Robert D. McMahon, c/o Johnson Accounting Service, 780 East 7th Street, St. Paul, Minnesota 55106.....\$285.

Bruce D. McPhee, P.O. Box 75634, St. Paul, Minnesota 55175.....\$225.

* Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

David H. Mueller, 1712 West 82nd Street, Inver Grove Heights, Minnesota 55075.....\$600.

Lloyd W. Myers, Jr., 710 North Prairie Street, Lake City, Minnesota 55041.....\$300.

Wayne R. Naplin, Star Rt., Box 63, Chesaw-Oroville, Washington 98844.....\$600.

Randall A. Nicholas, Route 3, Box 310-A, Alexandria, Minnesota 56308.....\$600.

John W. Nixon, Route 8, St. Cloud, Minnesota 56301.....\$300.

Harold B. Oen, 2821 Idaho Avenue North, Crystal, Minnesota 55427.....\$210.

Steven E. Ohlemann, 260 8th Street, Tracy, Minnesota 56175.....\$300.

William A. Olson, 103-17th Street, Cloquet, Minnesota 55720.....\$165.

David L. Peloquin, 4028 Cleveland Street Northeast, Columbia Heights, Minnesota 55421.....\$270.

Richard A. Pedersen, 6120 Oxboro Avenue North, #222, Stillwater, Minnesota 55082.....\$195.

Alton A. Peterson, 17527 Cherry Drive, Eden Prairie, Minnesota 55344.....\$300.

Lyll B. Peterson, Box 182, Anoka, Minnesota 55303.....\$105.

Steven M. Peterson, 9408 Elliot Avenue South, Bloomington, Minnesota 55420.....\$100.

James L. Roderick, 538 Jackson, Elk River, Minnesota 55330.....\$300.

William W. Spry, Box 31, Deer River, Minnesota 55744.....\$100.

Charles R. Stevens, Jr., Route 1, Box 172, Chisholm, Minnesota 55719.....\$300.

William E. Tolrud, RR 2, Deer River, Minnesota 56636.....\$105.

Sec. 2. **OTHER GENERAL FUND CLAIMS.**

Subdivision 1. The sums set forth in this section are appropriated from the general fund to the persons named in this section in full and final payment of claims against the state. This appropriation is available until June 30, 1987.

Subd. 2. Steven R. Hamberg, c/o Paulette Calderon, Freeborn County Department of Court Services, Courthouse, Albert Lea, Minnesota 56007, for medical expenses incurred while claimant was doing court-ordered community service restitution.....\$276.95.

Subd. 3. Rufus L. Hare, 1819 Plymouth Avenue North, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55411, for an injury received while doing his assigned tasks at Minnesota correctional facility-Stillwater, which resulted in a permanent partial disability of his right hand.....\$2,142.00.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 4. Dudley L. Johnson, 911 Oakland Park Road, P. O. Box 716, Thief River Falls, Minnesota 56701, to replace the prosthetic arm he has been using since he lost his right arm while doing his assigned tasks at the Minnesota correctional facility-Red Wing, in 1955. This appropriation is to the commissioner of corrections to pay the necessary expenses related to replacing the arm and maintaining it in proper working order, to remain available until expended and without prejudice to future claims for future medical and prosthetic expenses.....\$10,000.00.

Subd. 5. Robert Letourneau, No. 119469, Minnesota Correctional Facility-St. Cloud, Box B, St. Cloud, Minnesota 55301, for an injury received while doing his assigned tasks at Minnesota Correctional Facility-St. Cloud, which resulted in a permanent partial disability of his left thumb.....\$1,000.00.

Subd. 6. Richard Love, c/o Lynnette Gagne, Restitution Coordinator, St. Louis County Division, Courthouse, Duluth, Minnesota 55802, for medical expenses for an injury claimant received while doing court-ordered community service restitution.....\$34.95.

Subd. 7. Overgaard, Oscar T., Route 2, Luverne, Minnesota 56156, indemnity for cattle destroyed to prevent the spread of brucellosis.....\$5,000.00.

Subd. 8. RAM, a Scott County Juvenile, c/o Dennis Miller, Scott County Probation Officer, Suite 207, Courthouse, Shakopee, Minnesota 55379, for medical expenses for an injury claimant received while doing court-ordered community service restitution.....\$22.00.

Subd. 9. Rodgers, Johnnie B., No. 111113, Minnesota Correctional Facility-Stillwater, Box 55, Stillwater, Minnesota 55082, for a pair of shoes that were medically necessary because of an injury received while doing his assigned tasks at Minnesota Correctional Facility-Stillwater.....\$32.00.

Subd. 10. Todd County Wetlands Hearings Unit, c/o Robert Mostad, Chairman, Route 2, Box 49, Osakis, Minnesota 56360, for legal fees incurred in the state's appeal of the Hearings Unit's decision.....\$16,566.82.

Subd. 11. Triebwasser, Amidon W., Box 172, Cotton, Minnesota 55724, indemnity for bison destroyed to prevent the spread of tuberculosis.....\$3,040.00.

Subd. 12. Brad D. Ward, 6300 Morgan Avenue South, Richfield, Minnesota 55423, for medical expenses for an injury claimant received when attacked by another inmate at Minnesota correctional facility-Stillwater. This appropriation is to the commissioner of corrections to pay the necessary expenses to complete facial surgery when it is performed.....\$2,000.00.

Subd. 13. City of Wayzata, 600 Rice Street, Wayzata, Minnesota 55391, for unemployment compensation benefits paid as ordered by a referee, whose order was finally reversed on appeal.....\$4,775.00.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 3. TRUNK HIGHWAY FUND CLAIMS.

Subdivision 1. The sums set forth in this section are appropriated from the trunk highway fund to the commissioner of transportation for payment to the persons named in this section in full and final payment of claims against the state. This appropriation is available until June 30, 1987.

Subd. 2. Township of Breitung, Box 56, Soudan, Minnesota 55782, as a refund of amounts paid for reconveyance of land that had been conveyed to the state for one dollar.....\$500.00.

Subd. 3. City of Chisago City, 29246 Old Towne Road, Chisago City, Minnesota 55013, for costs incurred in acquiring land to build a frontage road north of U.S. highway 8.....\$110,000.00.

Subd. 4. Culdrum Township, Swanville Township, City of Swanville, Route 2, Box 130, Little Falls, Minnesota 56345, for repairs to town and city roads necessitated by excess traffic caused by the closure of a state highway for construction.....\$3,470.56.

Sec. 4. GAME AND FISH FUND CLAIM.

Subdivision 1. The sum set forth in this section is appropriated from the game and fish fund to the commissioner of natural resources for payment to the person named in this section in full and final payment of claims against the state. This appropriation is available until June 30, 1987.

Subd. 2. Morey's Fish Company, P.O. Box 248, Motley, Minnesota 56466, for loss of value to a commercial fish warehouse and processing plant due to the elimination of commercial fishing on Lake of the Woods.....\$27,500.00.

Sec. 5. STATE EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION.

Subdivision 1. The labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the American federation of state, county, and municipal employees, council 6, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on July 23, 1985, is ratified.

Subd. 2. The labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the Minnesota association of professional employees, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on September 4, 1985, is ratified.

Subd. 3. The labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the middle management association, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on September 4, 1985, is ratified.

Subd. 4. The labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the Minnesota government engineers' council, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on September 4, 1985, is ratified.

Subd. 5. The commissioner of employee relations' plan for unrepresented employees, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on September 4, 1985, is ratified.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 6. The commissioner of employee relations' plan for managerial employees, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on September 4, 1985, is ratified.

Subd. 7. The salary plan for positions listed in Minnesota Statutes, section 15A.081 approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on September 4, 1985, is ratified, except that the salary of the commissioner of human services is \$62,494; the salary of the chief administrative law judge, office of administrative hearings, is \$57,060; the salary of the chairman, metropolitan council, is \$52,000; the salary of the commissioner of veterans affairs is \$48,100; and the salary of a commissioner, public utilities commission, is \$44,850.

Subd. 8. The labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the Minnesota nurses association, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on October 29, 1985, is ratified.

Subd. 9. The labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the interfaculty organization, Minnesota education association, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on December 18, 1985, is ratified.

Subd. 10. The labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the Minnesota state university association of administrative service faculty, international brotherhood of teamsters, local 320, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on December 18, 1985, is ratified.

Subd. 11. The labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the state residential schools education association, approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on January 30, 1986, is ratified.

Subd. 12. The negotiated and arbitrated labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the bureau of criminal apprehension agents' association, Minnesota conservation officers' association, and the Minnesota state patrol officers' association approved by the legislative commission on employee relations on February 24, 1986, is ratified.

Subd. 13. After adjournment of the 1986 session but before the 1987 session of the legislature, the legislative commission on employee relations may give interim approval to any negotiated agreement, arbitration award, or compensation or salary plan submitted to it under other law. The commission shall submit the agreement, award, or plan to the entire legislature for ratification in the same manner and with the same effect as provided for agreements, awards, and plans submitted after adjournment of the legislature in an odd-numbered year.

Subd. 14. The negotiated and arbitrated labor agreement between the state of Minnesota and the Minnesota community college faculty association, Minnesota Education Association, submitted to the legislative commission on employee relations, is ratified.

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 6. **EFFECTIVE DATE.**

This act is effective the day following final enactment.

Approved March 25, 1986

CHAPTER 435—S.F.No. 1014

An act relating to crimes; providing for prosecution by city attorneys of certain misdemeanors; defining escape from a juvenile correctional facility as a delinquent act; reinstating the sheriff's contingent fund for drug and alcohol-violation investigation; permitting six-member juries in gross misdemeanor cases; permitting the imposition of fines and minimum probation periods on persons placed on probation; expanding the crime of theft to cover diversions of corporate property and unlawful distributions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1984, sections 160.27, subdivision 5; 260.015, subdivision 5; 260.125, subdivision 3; 593.01, subdivision 2; 609.13, subdivision 1; 609.135, subdivisions 2 and 4; and 611.033; and Minnesota Statutes 1985 Supplement, sections 609.135, subdivision 1; and 609.52, subdivision 2; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 387 and 611A.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1984, section 160.27, subdivision 5, is amended to read:

Subd. 5. **MISDEMEANORS.** Except for the actions of the road authorities, their agents, employees, contractors, and utilities in carrying out their duties imposed by law or contract, and except as herein provided, it shall be unlawful to:

- (1) Obstruct any highway or deposit snow or ice thereon;
- (2) Plow or perform any other detrimental operation within the road right of way except in the preparation of the land for planting a perennial hay crop, and the harvesting of said crop;
- (3) Erect a fence on the right of way of a trunk highway, county state-aid highway, county highway or town road, except to erect a lane fence to the ends of a livestock pass;
- (4) Dig any holes in any highway; except to locate markers placed to identify sectional corner positions and private boundary corners.
- (5) Remove any earth, gravel or rock from any highway;
- (6) Obstruct any ditch draining any highway or drain any noisome materials into any ditch;

Changes or additions are indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.